CABINET MEMBER SIGNING

Friday, 25th February, 2022, 1.00 pm

Members: Councillor Erdal Dogan — Cabinet Member for Stronger and Safer
Communities

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a
matter who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is
considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest
becomes apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must
withdraw from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which
is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a
pending notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28
days of the disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests
are defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of
Conduct

ALLEY GATE PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER - NOEL PARK
WARD (PAGES 1 - 44)

Haringey



Fiona Rae, Acting Committees Manager
Tel — 020 8489 3541

Fax — 020 8881 5218

Email: fiona.rae@haringey.gov.uk

Fiona Alderman
Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring Officer)
George Meehan House, 294 High Road, Wood Green, N22 8JZ

Thursday, 17 February 2022



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

Report for: Cabinet Member Signing — 25 February 2022

Title: Alley Gate Public Space Protection Order — Noel Park Ward
Report

authorised by: Stephen McDonnell, Director of Environment and Neighbourhoods
Lead Officer: Eubert Malcolm, Assistant Director for Stronger & Safer

Communities, 020 8489 5520.

Ward(s) affected: Noel Park Ward

Report for Key/
Non Key Decision: Non Key Decision

11

1.2

1.3

14

2.1

2.2

Describe the issue under consideration

In April 2021, The Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime, (MOPAC) as the Police
and Crime Commissioner for London, invited London Boroughs to submit a bid to
The Home Office Safer Streets Fund Scheme. Haringey Council submitted a bid
totalling £301,579 and was selected as the primary bid for London.

As part of the bidding process, the Home Office crime data identified Noel Park
Ward (the Ward) as having high rates of burglary and associated acquisitive
offending and anti-social behaviour (ASB) per head of population and relative to
Ward size. The data indicates increases in these crimes in the Ward over a five year
period, with the Ward identified as one of the most significant contributors to
burglary and associated acquisitive offending and ASB in London (see Appendix 1).

A Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) is an order which is intended to deal
with a particular nuisance or problem in a defined area which is detrimental to the
local community’s quality of life by imposing conditions on the use of that area.
The Council wishes to consult on the introduction of such an order.

The PSPO proposed for Noel Park will include the installation of four gates which
will restrict unlawful entry/activities.

Cabinet Member Introduction

The council’s vision for Haringey is a place of economic growth, better housing and
thriving communities. The locations that have been identified in Noel Park Ward
are all alleyways/mews that have access points to the rear of business and
residential properties. One of the alleyways/ mews identified sits on the border of
Noel Park and Haringey Ward, adjacent to Duckett's Common.

In order to deliver that vision, the Council wishes to introduce a PSPO in the Ward
to stop the anti-social behaviour and criminal activity currently blighting the lives of
residents and businesses in the area.

Haringey



2.3

3.

3.1

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

Page 2

As stated above, a proportion of the Safer Streets funding has been allocated to
the installation of four gates at the front of the alleyways/ mews. These gates will
restrict people that have no right of way from using the alleyways/ mews in the
ward. These gates will restrict people that have no right of way from using the
alleyway/mews and make the area a safer place where business owners and
residents feel more secure in their properties.

Recommendations
The Cabinet Member is asked:

To approve in principle a formal public consultation in relation to the potential
introduction of a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Noel Park Ward. Details
of the proposal are contained in Appendix 1 and would include the installation of the
four gates at the front of alleyways/ mews. The consultation will commence in
accordance with section 72 of the Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act
2014, with consultation to run, upon approval, for a minimum period of four weeks.

Reasons for decision

Over the years, the Council, its partners and key stakeholders have undertaken
various measures and activities to tackle the ASB issues that blight residents’ lives.
Due to the limited success of various measures and activities undertaken, it is
considered by officers that an effective deterrent will be the use of PSPO powers
alongside the tools and powers available to the council under the Antisocial
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.

The legislation allows for the use of enforcement such as fixed penalty notices and
prosecution. It is proposed that, in order to support the legislation, targeted and
sustained enforcement will be used from partners including: Wood Green Town
Centre Police Team, Haringey Police, British Transport Police, Immigration, ASB
Enforcement Team officers and other Council Officers. It must be noted that there
will be a financial cost should the authority wish to prosecute any of the perpetrators.

Alternative options considered

Not to pursue any PSPO. Given community feedback over many years, the volume
of burglaries, and the acquisitive crime and ASB being caused in the Ward there
are no options that could be considered as an appropriate alternative to deter and
manage the use of the identified alleyways which are currently encouraging ongoing
criminality and ASB.

ASB associated with alleyways/mews

In 2020, an alleyway on Wood Green High Road, N22 was found to be particularly
affected by anti-social behaviour and gang-related activity, drug dealing, drug
taking, street drinking, discarded beer cans, drugs paraphernalia, urine and faeces.

To tackle the issues in the alleyway, as the land was unadopted, it was agreed that
the council would install a gate so only people who have the right of way could
access, which has proven to be successful, and we have seen a significant
reduction in ASB linked to this alleyway which is no longer a crime attractor.

Haringey



6.3

7

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

8.1

Page 3

To tackle the issues under consideration, the Council have considered the use of a
PSPO under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. This would
allow gates to be installed and a pin code will allow access to the anyone with the
right of way. The closure of the alleyways/mews would also bring long awaited relief
to the immediate business owners and residents.

Public Spaces Protection Orders (PSPOSs)

The aim of a PSPO is to stop individuals or groups committing anti-social behaviour
in public spaces. Restrictions and requirements can be placed on an area where
activities have or are likely to have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of local
people, is persistent or continuing in nature and is unreasonable. These can be
blanket restrictions or requirements or can be targeted against named behaviours
by certain groups at particular times. The guidance is not specific about what can
be included in a PSPO.

The potential use of a PSPO is very broad and flexible to allow a council to cover
individual circumstances in its area. A PSPO can cover multiple restrictions so one
order could prohibit such activities as the drinking of alcohol and dogs on a lead.
The PSPO can cover any publicly accessible space with the Council’s area,
including an area in private ownership to which the public have access.

Enforcement will be shared between the council and the police. Breach of a
requirement to desist in a particular activity is a criminal offence which can result in
a fixed penalty notice or a fine of up to £1,000 on conviction. Enforcement can be
undertaken by council officers, and other groups the council may designate, but
principally police officers and Police Community Support Officers (PCSOs). The
police will additionally have the power of detention.

The PSPO’s have been implemented in other parts of the borough and have proven
to be very successful. Enforcement action and fixed penalty notices have been
taken against individuals that have breached the PSPO. This has seen a significant
improvement on the quality of lives of people living and working in the locality.

By effectively using the powers available under the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime
and Policing Act 2014 alongside enforcement from partners, it is envisaged that a
long term enforcement approach will tackle the historical issues that are ongoing
along certain parts of the Ward.

Proposal for matters to be contained in the PSPO

It is proposed to consult on the introduction of a PSPO which will cover a number
of activities including

e Congregating in a group of two or more persons in such a manner as to
cause obstruction or give reasonable grounds for annoyance to any
person in the street or public place, including alleyways/mews.

Haringey



8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

9.1

Page 4

e Persistently loitering in a street or public place or along alleyways/mews
in the ward for the purposes of offering illegal services e.g. as a drug
dealing.

e Urinating, defecating or exposing genitals in a public place or in an area
belonging to a private resident, business or the council (excluding a toilet
designated for use by members of the public).

e Consuming alcohol or having an open container of alcohol in your
possession in the street or public place including the alleyways/mews.

e Gating an area that is blighted with drug taking resulting in defecation of
alleyways.

The land in relation to which this Order applies is that land in the area of the London
Borough of Haringey, namely that which is delineated and shown in red on Map 1
at Appendix 2 and forming part of the Order: this includes the roads: High Road,
Wood Green, Turnpike Lane, Duckett's Common, Whymark Avenue, Bury Road,
Westbury Avenue, all alleyways/mews in the mentioned roads.

A breach of the prohibition can result in a maximum penalty not exceeding level 3
on the standard scale (currently £1000).

This Order will come into force on 18t March 2022 and shall remain in place until
28" February 2025

At any point before the expiry of this 12-month period the council can extend the
order by up to three years if they are satisfied on reasonable grounds that this is
necessary to prevent the activities identified in the order from occurring or recurring
or to prevent an increase in the frequency or seriousness of those activities after
that time.

Any challenge to this Order must be made in the High Court by an interested person
within six weeks of it being made. An interested person is someone who lives in,
regularly works in, or visits the restricted area. This means that only those who are
in the locality are directly affected by the restrictions and have the power to
challenge. The right to challenge also exists where an Order is varied by the council.

Consultation process

The council’'s ASB Enforcement team (ASB Enforcement) will carry out extensive
consultation, namely:

e Consultation will run for a minimum period of four weeks.
e An online consultation survey will be made available.

Haringey



10

10.1

Page 5

ASB Enforcement will design a partnership letter/leaflet outlining the reasons for
the PSPO and its proposed prohibitions.

The letter/leaflet will direct residents/Workers/shoppers to the online survey and
the ASB Enforcement mailbox.

We will distribute the letters through door- knocking in the affected locality and a
hard copy of the survey will be included.

ASB Enforcement will supply the letter/leaflet to local businesses for their
information and to display for customers.

ASB Enforcement will attend relevant ward panel and resident meetings to inform
participants of the proposed PSPO and to disseminate the leaflet and survey.

Contribution to strategic outcomes

Corporate Plan 2019/2023

Our vision is for for all residents and businesses in Haringey is summarised in
Priority 3 of the Corporate Plan: A place with strong, resilient and connected
communities where people can lead active and healthy lives in an environment
that is safe, clean and green. Underpinning this overarching priority are four
specific objectives to address crime and ASB:

Support and challenge the Metropolitan Police and other partners to establish
stronger relationships with our local communities, especially young people in how
we work together in reducing crime and improve confidence.

Work with the Metropolitan Police and other partners to ensure the criminal
justice system works swiftly to secure convictions against perpetrators of crime.
Work with partners, including urban designers, police, and local communities to
design out crime and improve safety.

Continue to work with neighbouring boroughs and other partners to secure
funding from national government and the Mayor’s Office for Policing and Crime
(MOPAC) to address confidence building measures across borough boundaries.

The PSPO is intended to deal with a particular nuisance or problem in a defined
area, which is detrimental to the local community’s quality of life, by imposing
conditions on the use of that area which will apply to everyone, contributing to the
objective.

11 Statutory Officers comments (Director of Finance including procurement,

111

Head of Legal and Governance, Equalities)

Finance (including Procurement)

13.1.1 The costs of undertaking the consultation exercise recommended in this report

11.2

can be contained within existing budgets. If the consultation subsequently leads
to a PSPO being implemented then the costs of doing so will also be funded from
existing budget provisions, any income arising would be used to support
enforcement activity.

Legal

Haringey



Page 6

11.2.1 A PSPO may be made if the Council is satisfied on reasonable grounds that;

e Activities carried on in a public place within the Borough either have had
or it is likely that they will have, a detrimental effect on the quality of life of
those in the locality;

o Itis likely that the detrimental effect will be persistent, and such as to make
the activities unreasonable;

e The effect or likely effect is such as to justify the restrictions imposed by
the proposed PSPO.

11.2.2 Before making a PSPO the council must publicise its draft text and consult with

the local police (formally with the chief officer of police and MOPAC), with such
local community groups as the council sees fit, and with the owners of any land
covered by the PSPO.

11.2.3 Section 72 (1) of the 2014 Act requires that in deciding whether to make a

PSPO and, if so, what it should include, the Council must have particular regard
to the rights of freedom of expression and freedom of assembly and association
set out in articles 10 and 11 of the Convention for the Protection of Human
Rights and Fundamental Freedoms (“the Convention”).Whilst acknowledging
that the proposed Order potentially entails an infringement of individuals’
human rights, including the right to respect for private life and potentially the
right to freedom of assembly and association, it is considered that these
qgualified rights may in this instance be legitimately interfered with in the
interests of public safety, the prevention of crime and disorder and in
accordance with the law.

11.2.4 Regarding consultation, this has to be at a time when proposals are still at a

11.2.5

11.2.6

11.2.7

formative stage. Second, the proposer has to give sufficient reasons for any
proposal to permit an intelligent consideration and response. Third, adequate
time has to be given for consideration and response, and finally, the product of
consultation had to be conscientiously taken into account in finalising any
statutory proposal or reaching a decision. The process of consultation has to
be effective and looked at as a whole it has to be fair. The Council is obliged to
take account of any representations made during the consultation period and
all objections received must be properly considered by the decision maker in
the light of administrative law principles, Human Rights law and the relevant
statutory powers.

Once it has been made the council must also publish the PSPO in accordance
with regulations published by the Secretary of State.

PSPO will impose restrictions and requirements that are set by the local
authority. These can be blanket restrictions or requirements or can be targeted
at against certain behaviours by certain groups at certain times.

PSPO can be enforced by a Police Officer, Police Community Support Officer,
and Council Officers, and a breach of a PSPO is a criminal offence that can be
dealt with through the issuing of a fixed penalty notice or prosecution.

Haringey



11.2.8

11.2.9

11.2.10

11.3

11.3.1

11.3.2

11.2.3

Page 7

Directors (including ADs) have delegated authority to authorise any form of
legal proceedings, enforcement function or statutory procedure, subject to
advice and agreement from Corporate Legal Services. They can also authorise
the institution of any process or proceedings for administering the functions of
the Council.

As this PSPO will affect one ward, it will be a non-key decision.

The implementation of the PSPO can be challenged by any interested person
within six weeks of the making of the order, the challenge is made at the High
Court. Anyone who is directly affected by the making of the PSPO can
challenge the order. A challenge can be made on the basis that the Council
does not have the power to make the order, or that the prohibitions or
requirements are unnecessary or that procedurally the order is defective.

Equality

The Council has a public sector equality duty under the Equality Act (2010) to
have due regard to; tackle discrimination and victimisation of persons that share
the characteristics protected under S4 of the Act (age, disability, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation); advance equality of opportunity
between people who share those protected characteristics and people who do
not; and foster good relations between people who share those characteristics
and people who do not.

The government guidance on PSPO states that the restrictions of a PSPO can
be blanket restrictions or requirements or can be targeted against certain
behaviours by certain groups at certain times. It should be noted that this
PSPO is likely to have a more significant impact upon the activities of gang
related individuals. These are the individuals largely identified as, but not
solely responsible for the anti-social behaviour that is detrimental to the local
communities quality of life — with instances of drug dealing, drug use, urinating
or defecating litter from consumed cans and bottles of alcohol, intimidation felt
by the large numbers blocking the public highway, the noise nuisance and the
gatherings of intoxicated individuals.

No particular group should be disadvantaged through the consultation, publicity
and enforcement of the PSPO. The law requires that we ensure that we
improve the borough’s understanding of the community and cultivate better
understanding between communities thereby “fostering good relations” as
required by law at 1 (c) above. Targeting specific groups may cause friction so
careful consideration will be given when carrying out consultation in both the
wording of the consultation document/survey and the PSPO, so that no one
group is targeted by the Order. We will also ensure that when carrying out
consultation we give due regard to those who might not otherwise get involved
helping them understand how they can get involved so their voices are heard,
for example where there are known language barriers documentation will be

Haringey



11.34

Page 8

translated into other relevant languages and face-to-face consultation will |
involve interpreters and officers with other relevant languages. We will
undertake letter drops and door knocking exercises to all affected residents and
business in the locality. We have agreed with the police and will involve other
services in carrying out pre-consultation operations targeting, in particular the
gangs that congregate in the alleyways/mews and immediate areas, to ensure
they are aware of the consultation process and have an opportunity to make
their views known. A similar operation will be delivered explaining the PSPO
should the order be sanctioned.

The introduction of a PSPO in the locality of Wood Green High Road, Turnpike
Lane and surrounding roads has the potential to have a positive impact on the
Council’'s duty under the Equality Act 2010, to foster good relations between
communities. It will tackle antisocial behaviour which has the potential to create
tensions between different communities.

11.3.5 The PSPO will apply to all individuals committing antisocial behaviour within the

designated area, without discrimination. The Consultation process will seek to
gather the views of all local communities and ensure that the characteristics of
respondents are recorded. Equalities analysis of the consultation response and
results, and an outline of any proposed mitigating actions, will then be recorded
in an Equalities Impact Assessment which will be carried out once the
consultation is complete.

12  Use of Appendices

12.1 Appendix 1 — Proposals for Consultation on a Public Spaces Protection Order in

Noel Park Ward

13 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

13.1 Not applicable.

Haringey



Page 9

Secured by Design
il

eyt

Police Crime Prevention Initiatives

[
Official Police Security Initiative

NE 6001 - Noel Park/Turnpike Lane

Environmental Visual Audit

The EVArrepothas been created using the 7 Attributes of Safer Places — the planning system and
crime prevention (2004 Archived).

Safer Places focuses on 7 attributes of sustainability that are particularly relevant to crime
prevention. The attributes are general and descriptive, they are not prescriptive or exhaustive.
They are not a set of rules to be applied to all situations, but should be considered as prompts to the
consideration of crime prevention and promoting community safety, primarily through the planning
system.

The document was superseded in 2014 with updated planning practice guidance, however, the
attributes still provide a simple yet effective framework for surveying the built environment.

The 7 Attributes of Safer Places

Access and movement
Places with well-defined routes, spaces and entrances that provide for convenient movement without
compromising security.

Structure
Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause conflict.

Surveillance
Places where all publicly accessible spaces are overlooked.

Ownership
Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial responsibility and community.

Physical protection
Places that include necessary, well-designed security features.

Activity
Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location and creates a reduced risk of crime
and a sense of safety at alltimes.

Management and maintenance
Places that are designed with management and maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in the present
and the future.



Page 10

Summary of Recommendations

An Executive Summary of the main findings is always good practice, followed by detailed
observations and recommendations in the main body of the report.

For the purpose of the EVA we are recommending the following target hardening tools which
not only aid in the prevention of burglary but also reduce other secondary crimes and ASB
related issues at the location

1. Target hardening the doors and windows of individual properties, thus reducing the
opportunity of burglary offences.

2. Use of video door bells — a visual deterrent that puts the eyes of capable guardians on the
street, this device may also lead to residents sharing information via social media platforms
(closed groups). Therefore, it may also deter ASB, Robbery and MV crime as secondary
issues.

3. Alley gating — there are two type of alleys within the location

a. Street Mews — Access points between shop fronts that lead to properties on the rear
ground floor of said shop fronts, effectively leading to a street.

b. Alleyway Mews — Access points to the rear of shops that lead to elevated apartments
above shop fronts that have been created due to rear extensions of the properties
and retail units.

It is important to note that both alleyways give access to the rear of terraced houses thus
protection is dual fold for both streets.

4. Neighbourhood Watch Scheme - Integral to the success of the target hardening
recommendations is the constant engagement and assistance from the NWS scheme and its
coordinators who provide local community champions supporting the crime prevention
campaign that will promote the legacy of physical target hardening.

Location One (1)
House unit numbers - Bury Road (17), Westbeech Road (104), Whymark Avenue (48) & Westbury
Avenue (20) (East of High Road)
Apartment unit numbers — Whymark (18) Bellevue court (9) Westbeech (8)
Total Number of units - 204
1. Target harden doors and windows of Terraced houses/ Terraced house HMOs and Apartment
blocks
a. Locks
i. Euro cylinder — 70%
ii. Deadlock x 2 & Deadlock night latch — 30%
London/Birmingham bar
Spy hole
Mailbox cowling
Sash window locks
Security film to glazing
2. Video doorbells on street level (204 units)
3. Replace/ Refurbish rear fencing along Westbeech Road (rear of Whymark Avenue) — 46 metres
4. Replace/ Refurbish rear fencing of Apartments on rear of Westbeech Road (Bury Road) — 40
metres

~®oo00C

Location Two (2) — High Road, Wood Green
1. Gate alleyway between 7&9 High Road - Pedestrian only 1.5 — 2.5 metres wide/ 2.4 metres height
including infill and exposed tops, with self-closer and access control (may be analogue due to
nature of homes behind)
a. Secure the rear of the properties of High Road
b. Secures the rear of properties for Waldegrave Road

2



Page 11

2. Gate Alleyway leading through Hazel Mews (just off High Road) - Pedestrian, possibly vehicle 2.5
— 3 metres wide/ 2.4 metres in height including, no infill if vehicle access required, exposed tops,

self-closer and access controlled
a. Secure the rears of properties of High Road
b. Secure the rear of properties on Alexandra Road
3. Gate Alleyway leading through Walnut Mews (just off High Road in Colraine Road) - Wide

Pedestrian 2- 3 metres across / 2.4 metres in height including, no infill if vehicle access required,

exposed tops, self-closer and access controlled
a. Secure the rear of properties of High Road
b. Secure the rear of properties on Alexandra Road

4. Target harden doors of High Street side HMOs ( see location one) 5 unit doors ( rest is from the

rear)
a. Solid core door
b. Locks

i. Euro cylinder — 70%

ii. Deadlock x 2 & Deadlock night latch — 30%
c. London/Birmingham bar
d. Spy hole
e. Mailbox cowling

Location Three (3) - Turn Pike Lane (South East of High Road)
1. Target harden doors of HMOs/ Terraced Houses — 52 units/doors

a. Locks
b. London/Birmingham bar
c. Spy hole

d. Mailbox cowling
e. Security film to glazing

2. Alley Gate Turnpike Mews Turnpike Lane — Set between 63 & 65 Turnpike Lane — less than 2

metres wide/3 metres high, pedestrian only
3. Turnpike Pike Mews — Target harden doors and windows — only needed if no alley gate
i. Locks
ii. London/Birmingham bar
iii. Spy hole
iv. Mailbox cowling
v. Secure the perimeters between houses.

4. Alley Gate The Mews — Set between 79 & 81 Turnpike Lane - 2.2 metres wide/3 metres high with

infill pedestrian and vehicle gate, self-closing access controlled

Location Four (4) - East of High Road - Encompassing Alexandra Road (35), Burghley Road (44),
Courcy Road (28), Vernon Road (24), Waldegrave Road (43), Lyttleton Road (14), Brampton Park Road

(9), Coleraine Road (40).

1. Target harden doors and windows of Terraced houses and HMOs - 237 unit/doors
a. Locks
b. London/Birmingham bar
c. Spy hole
d. Mailbox cowling
e. Security film to glazing
f. Sash window locks
2. Video doorbells.
3. Replace/Refurbish alley gating between semi-detached homes



Page 12

Consideration for Routine Activity Theory
All recommendations have been made with due consideration to the Routine Activity Theory (RAT) in mind with the
concept of

Motivated offenders — where possible we have reduced the opportunity for the offender to commit an offence, by
making it both difficult for them to enter a premises via their normal means and via showing them that the gain is not
worth the risk.

Suitable target - With the above measures we have reduced the feasibility of the targets suitability, thus reducing the
opportunity of crime.

Absence of a suitable guardian - With modern living there is little opportunity for a guardian to be present at a
property 24/7. With the use of the measures that we have provided, in particular with video doorbells we have
introduced the modern suitable guardian, whereby you don’'t need to be home. You can still monitor your home
and engage with anyone at your door, whether lawfully of unlawfully.

Introduction — Location description, General Observations and Context

The area selected for this Environmental Visual Audit is part of Noel Park Ward, in the London Borough of
Haringey. It is an area that is approximately 1.2 Square kilometre, which is half the size of any ward in
Haringey and across London. Noel Park is home to approximately 15,000 residents which is a larger
population compared to other London Wards. The area chosen within Noel Park is approximately 25-30%
of the geographical area of the total ward, but it is considered the main Town Centre of Haringey due to its
close proximity to the LBoH council offices, High Street and accessibility via public transport. The area is
well known for high street crime and gang related activities within the area, which borders Ducketts
Common to the south.

The area boundaries are Turnpike lane leading into Westbury Avenue to the south, Westbeech to the east,
Alexandra Road to the west. All side locations meet at the triangular point where Alexandra Road meets
the main High Road which runs through the centre.

Road links - The main road that runs through the centre has high levels of vehicle traffic and links via road
to the A406 (North Circular) to the north and A10 to the east.

Public Transport - There is access to local underground stations (Wood Green and Turnpike Lane) and
bus services to the main train stations. The High Road has a transport PTAL rating of 6, which is
considerably higher than other wards.

One of the earliest garden suburbs in the world, the Noel Park Estate was designed to provide affordable
housing for working-class families wishing to leave the inner city; every property had both a front and back
garden. It was planned from the outset as a self-contained community close enough to the rail network to
allow its residents to commute to work. In line with the principles of the Artisans Company's founder,
William Austin, no public houses were built within the estate, and there are still none today.

The entire area has approximately 720 properties of which

44 are part of low rise apartments

60 are part of Mews alleyways

112 units are single units (HMOs or flats divided between 35 houses)
Remaining 504 are terraced or semi-detached properties

An approximation has been made based on a site survey (conducted in quick time) and due to the
adapting of single units to multiple dwellings combined with the non-homogenous nature of the rear
alleyways and Mews properties.

The Metropolitan Police strategic insight unit have conducted research based on the past 5 years of
burglaries, as of the end of 2020. This area was highlighted as one of the highest rates of acquisitive crime
(including burglary) in London.

The following maps show the road names, the burglary map of the area and the area segmented into

4


https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Garden_city_movement
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Inner_London
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Public_house

Page 13

specific locations that enable us to provide concise evaluation and recommendations.

TR 4

MH&\/}—“ C 2

Haringey in relation to the rest of London Noel Park ward in relation to the rest of Haringey

7] This map shows the proportion of the target area to the overall
{ size of Noel Park ward and the main trunk roads that lead
through the ward north to south and east to west.

It is important to note that the north to south route is through
the main high street which is subject to a high level of ASB,
drinking and drug related issues leading to various crimes
including robbery and burglary which often occur off the main
high street out of plain sight.

0

This map shows the exact location indicating the
burglary issues over a 5 year period.

Demographic Social divide - It is important to understand that there is an East to West social divide
within the borough separated by the railway line which is just to left of the border of Noel Park, the target
area is part of a regeneration programme known as Haringey Heartlands and encompasses parts of Noel
Park (Clarendon Gasworks on the border of the railway line will incorporate 1600 new homes when it is
completed in 2028). Whilst this is welcomed in areas regeneration, it must also be noted that new
properties may also be a crime generator as it brings more affluence to an area and the development will
not include the regeneration or target hardening of current housing stock.

Permeability — As previously stated the area is permeable via road, but it is also permeable on foot, in
particular there are foot routes that cut through the east side of the area. These routes have different and
definitive functions.

o Alleyways — Used as short cuts through the housing estate. During the day time these areas would
be used regularly as thoroughfares and local residents feel comfortable walking through them. But
during the hours of darkness they promote the fear of crime and are narrow and dark with no
natural surveillance due to gable end walls and high fencing.



Page 14

| Arnold Bennett Way — Links Alexandra Road to Brampton Court
and Burghley Road at the north end of the target area

e Mews Alleyways - These alleyways lead to the rear of the shops and would have provided access
for the original shopkeepers in the 20" century, either for storage or for somewhere to live. There
are two areas of concern

o Alleyways between the building lines - properties at the rear have evolved due to
extensions that include larger commercial footage on the ground floor and apartments
above, accessed via cast iron staircases. Access via the alleyways if uncontrolled is often
unpleasant and gives easy access to the rear gardens of neighbouring properties This
connectivity makes it an attractive place to live, however it makes it highly permeable, which
is a reason behind its high burglary rate.

o Alleyways with under crofts — Similar to between building line but is part of the original
building (originally stables), with a habitable area above the under croft. The under crofts are
not maintained and can be unpleasant, dark and often where bins are kept. The original
design would have led the alleyway to a pleasant Mews street scene with an element of
privacy. The properties in these locations are on the ground floor and create a street scene
which could be pleasant to live in if controlled

Turnpike Mews off Turnpike road — turnpike Mews is slightly dif
Turnpike Mews is slightly different as the area has been
redeveloped with little thought to the access control to the area.

i There are at least 2 private developments operated by Linton Mews
that are similar on Turnpike Lane and the bottom of the High Road
which have private access. At this stage it is not known if there has
been any crime at these locations.

0 Street door alleyways — These entrances are deceptive as they appear to be front doors
on the high street elevation, but lead through an alleyway to the rear of the property to metal
stairs to the upper floors, we found that these areas often have rear gardens that are not
maintained and used for fly tipping etc. by the shopkeepers. Occasionally these entrances
are incorporated into the building with access stairways straight from the street to the upper
floors and can often be seen as an extra street door to the side of the shops.

The alleyways that lead to the rear of the high streets encourage crime and ASB and make the adjacent
houses vulnerable, they can also provide deceptive information on maps on the amount of housing units
that occupy the area.

General Residential Area — The housing stock in the area was developed at the turn of the 20" century to
house the working class labour population, to give them a standard of modern living and access to trains
into the centre of London. Most of the houses were designed to be small to avoid overcrowding or renting
of rooms, this has changed in recent years, as the rear of properties have been developed allowing for
multiple occupation.

With this area having been identified as being one of the most vulnerable to burglary in London, research
by way of reviewing 5 years of crime reports in the area and attending the area have been conducted to
identify particular locations that any security improvements would have the most significant positive impact
on. In doing so within this area four localities have been identified.

This map shows the target area broken down into 4 locations, this was required because of the geographic
size of the target area which does not lend itself to an EVA.



By segmenting the area into smaller,
more homogenous portions we ensure
that the recommendations are bespoke to
the location types.

Location One — Westbeech Road, Bury Road, Whymark Ave & Westbury Avenue — At first glance the
area has the appearance of a being locked in, almost a cul-de-sac. But Whymark Avenue leads to an
alleyway at the rear of Westbeech (The Sandings) which leads to under Westbury Avenue and into the
neighbouring estate giving this area easy egress when crime occurs.

Location Two —

Wood Green High Road (lower
end) — Whilst not the largest
populated area due to the
commercial retail function of the
area, it does have an element of
HMOs, above and rear of shop
apartments via alleyways. These
tend to be private landlords and
often not subject to the same
rigorous maintenance that social
landlords may implement.




Location Three — Turnpike
Lane is again mainly retail but
not as high end as the main
high street, mainly
concentrating on food
markets and news agents. In
this location there appears to
be a high concentration of
HMOs/ multiple flats and
entrance alleyways to Mews.

Location Four

e Alexandra Road
Burghley Road
Vernon Road
Coleraine Road
Lyttleton Road
Courcy Road

Mainly terraced houses with
some converted into multiple
flats or HMOs

Crime Data
On inspecting crime data for these five areas, it is clear that these properties are vulnerable.

London statistical analysis (based on 10 year analysis) Based on the latest data available from the
Officer of National Statistics (ONS) from Sept 2019, in England the current annual burglary rate is 11.4 per
1000 homes per year and in London this raises to 17.2 per 1000 homes. If this rate continued it would
mean that over a 10 year period in London every home would have a 17.2% chance of being burgled, and
11.4% nationally.

Ward statistical Analysis (based on 2018 data provided by MOPAC) — Shows that Noel Park is the 8"
highest ward in the borough out of 20 wards.

Local LSOA statistical analysis ( based on 6 year analysis) - Further research into the specific LSOA
target location data, the modus operandi of the burglaries shows that residential front access (including via
a communal door) are a particular issue.

Below are the percentages of the above burglaries noted.

8



Page 17

e Locality One — 70.00% via the front and 30.00% via the rear
e Locality Four - 78.05% via the front and 21.95% via the rear

Location One — Bury Road
10 burglaries, of which access via the front was gained on 7 occasions (4 via residential Communal Doors)

and via the rear on 3 occasions.

Location Four - Bounded by Alexandra Road and High Road

41 burglaries, of which access via the front was gained on 32 occasions (with 1 being Commercial and 7
via residential Communal Doors) and via the rear on 9 occasions.

For the rest of this report for each section there will be an entry for each of the four locations as all four
have different designs, features and recommendations.

See appendices 1-3 for supporting ward data



Page 18

Location One — EVA (South West of High Road)

Note that while the key areas of focus are on Bury road and Westbeech, the observations made in this section of the
report are indicative for the whole of Location one, especially around the weaknesses of doors and windows.

1. Access and movement - Places with well-defined routes, spaces and entrances that
provide for convenient movement without compromising security.

Quie ' | Whilst at first inspection the
? location appears to be reasonably
isolated with little or no traffic in the
area. It can be seen from the image
to the left (green for foot traffic and
red for vehicle traffic) that
permeability is an issue in terms of
easy egress via foot after an
| offence has been committed and
also providing an opportunity to
drive past and review the
vulnerabilities of the
neighbourhood.
It is worth noting that the site
inspection showed an
unreasonable number of video door bells at the corner of Bury and Westbeech Road,
indicating a concern for issues that may go beyond burglary (red circle).

MolGoogl@ Q 8 Riverside Lon|

Particular concern must be made to the access that travels under Westbury Road via the
Sandings as this again makes for easy egress after an offence to neighbouring estates
making it difficult for capable guardians such as police to follow when an offence has been
committed. Important to note that vehicle egress has already been restricted on along
Whymark Road, possibly due to earlier issues caused by traffic ASB (orange circle)

Public Transport - location 1 is within walking distance of Turnpike Lane underground
station, access can be gained to location one via the high road which would be the main
thorough fare.

2. Structure and Layout - Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause
conflict.

Primarily the properties are end of 20" century terraced houses with no off street parking
facilities which were given heritage status due to their typical design features for the period.

10



Page 19

The only areas of difference are highlighted in blue, which would have been caused by WW2
bomb damage and the subsequent houses and low rise apartments were not designed to
match the surrounding houses.

Each house has a respectable sized garden at the rear, but rear fencing can be exposed to
intruders.

3. Surveillance (natural, informal and formal) - Places where all publicly accessible spaces
are overlooked.

The properties appear to lend themselves well for overlooking the street, but typically these
windows are the within the main living area and would have either a sofa or TV in front of
them. The active windows would be located at the back, where the kitchens are, towards the
rear gardens with an additional annex on the rear. The image below shows a typical
Victorian terraced house and how it would have been laid out originally.

T 1Y Typical Victorian Layout

Tl | ] I | j Westbeech Road showing similar 4

ettt building type

This layout shows that the properties are more prone to burglary from the front due to the
layout of the building.

Note the use of video doorbells in this location, this indicates that the residents are not active at
the front of the building, video doorbells give them a level of comfort that the front is being
watched but does not encourage active surveillance.

4. Ownership - Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial responsibility and
community.

Within Westbeech and Bury Roads there are still a considerable amount of properties under

council ownership and these would be subject to refurbishment/improvement programmes by
11



Page 20

the local authority. Often LA’s can take a considerable amount of time, due to budget
constraints, to maintain their housing stock. Taking this into consideration the majority of
houses are well looked after by the residents, many who have lived there a number of years.

The only exception to this is the apartment blocks that appear to be run down and have not
received any refurbishments for some time.

WHYMARK
HOUSE

Nestbury Road Apartments Whymark House apartments

5. Physical Protection - Places that include necessary, well-designed security features.

The terraced housing in this area is indicative of both Location 1 and 4 showing the main weak
points at the front, to the doors and the windows. Within Location one this partly due to the listed
status of the buildings and the fact that doors and windows were replaced by the council with
similar designs, albeit modern versions but with the same issues

Typical examples of original Victorian
doors in Westbeech and Bury road
doors with glazed window, night latch
( easily slipped open) and deadlock
(which often is not locked and easy to
determine lock status)

Attempts have been made to some of
the doors to target harden them, but
with little thought to the need for
complete door enhancements.

LB of Haringey have replaced some of the
doors, but due to the existing door being part of
the heritage status of the area, the doors had to
be of a similar style. Whilst these doors may be
accredited to modern standards of PAS24, this
would not include attack tested glazing.

A statement confirmed by a local resident who
stated that the glazing is broken and the handle/
thumb turn for the multipoint locking system is
used to open the door.

12



Page 21

Sash Windows
These windows are typical of the area and prone to being easy to break into, with both period and
modern pvc windows. Often the locks that come with the windows are left open or don’t lock at all.

1 The original window locks are often painted

| over, rendering them unusable and unlockable
or there are no locks present (demonstrated by
| accompanying image) which reduces their
. effectiveness against burglary.

Apartment doors — behind the communal doors the residential doors are of poor quality, mainly
due to age and design. Albeit there is 2 layers of security, the first security door is not to the same
standard that we would apply under current guidelines.

Typical Westbeech front door with excessive glazing minimal locks

Typical Whymark front door — solid core door with minimal
locks

Fences

Due to the layout and design of the area there are certain locations that have fence treatments
along the road, creating a dead rear elevation and often in various states of dis-repair

Attached shows an example of fencing at the rear of Whymark running along the length and to the
rear of Westbeech on Bury road, whilst the MO for burglary is not indicative of this area to access
the properties at the rear, it does raise concern that if the front of house is improved will the point
of entry be displaced to the rear.

13



Page 22

N Rear of Westbeech Apartments on Bury road

Rear of Whymark road on
Westbeech road

6. Activity - Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location and
creates a reduced risk of crime and a sense of safety at all times.

As can be seen from the images at the beginning of this section, this area is transient (only
used to get from A2B) especially being so closely linked to the High Street and doesn’t
experience the level of community focus that enclosed communities may bring.

7. Management and Maintenance - Places that are designed with management and
maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in the present and the future.

Due to the mix tenure of the area, there is no designated management and maintenance
other than that provided by the local authority. There is evidence to suggest with the
apartment blocks that a severe lack of maintenance has led to the slow degradation of the
apartments and their surroundings.

Location one — Recommendations

Bury Road, Westbeech Road, Whymark Avenue & Westbury Avenue (East of High Road)

The crime MO for burglary indicates that the entry to properties is at the front building line via the street
door and that the main items that are stolen are small but of high value (phones, laptops, jewellery).
Therefore the following recommendations have been made in order of priority subject to availability of
funding.

1. Target harden doors and windows of Terraced houses/Terraced house HMOs and Apartment
blocks to include where required — Up to 204 doors
a. Locks
i. Deadlock x2 & deadlocking night latch (30% for old doors )
ii. Euro cylinder ( 70% for new doors )
London/Birmingham bar
Spy hole
Mailbox cowling
Sash window locks
Security film to glazing on old and new doors
2. Video doorbells on street level — Up to 204 homes. It is important to note that a video doorbell has
many benefits other than reducing burglary
a. Increase the surveillance via capable guardian at street level
i. Reducing secondary crime such as robbery, violence and antisocial behaviour.
14

~®Poo00T



Page 23

ii. Provides evidence of criminal activity to aid in criminal proceedings

iii. Rule sets behaviour at the front door (you are being watched)
3. Replace/ Refurbish rear fencing of Apartments on Westbeech Road (at rear on Bury Road)
4. Replace/ Refurbish rear fencing along Westbeech Road (rear of Whymark Avenue)

Note — It has been considered to replace and improve the main entrances of the Apartment Blocks. But
after deliberation due to cost factors, it is seen that the best alternative is to improve the front doors that
belong to the individual apartments.

All products where possible must be certified and approved to a British standard from an SBD member
company. An accredited product proven to face a certain level of attack that is manufactured by a Secure
by Design Member Company will ensure the security of the door and in turn ensure the intervention is
maintained for a considerable length of time.

Further Recommendations
It should further be recommend that the target hardening should be combined with further
recommendations for “soft” target hardening that should change residents attitudes to the possibility of
being a victim of crime and raise their awareness of ways to protect themselves from burglary. These
should include, but not be exhaustive, the following initiatives.
1. Crime prevention campaigns
a. Leaflet drops/mailshots
b. Direct marketing via social media
2. Property marking such as bike marking or select DNA.

Consideration for Routine Activity Theory
All recommendations have been made with due consideration to the Routine Activity Theory (RAT) in mind with the
concept of

Motivated offenders — where possible we have reduced the opportunity for the offender to commit an offence, by
making it both difficult for them to enter a premises via their normal means and via showing them that the gain is not
worth the risk.

Suitable target - With the above measures we have reduced the feasibility of the targets suitability, thus reducing the
opportunity of crime.

Absence of a suitable guardian - With modern living there is little opportunity for a guardian to be present at a
property 24/7. With the use of the measures that we have provided, in particular with video doorbells we have
introduced the modern suitable guardian, whereby you don’'t need to be home. You can still monitor your home
and engage with anyone at your door, whether lawfully of unlawfully.

15



Page 24

Location Two — EVA (High Road)

1. Access and movement — Places with well-defined routes, spaces and entrances that
provide for convenient movement without compromising security.

The High Road runs directly through the centre of the target location and provides access
points via foot and vehicle through to the East, West and South. By its nature it feeds into the
very fabric of the residential sections of the focused area. As well as providing access routes
to the residential neighbourhoods on the west side there are alleys that provide access to
apartments above the shops, as well access on street level to similar apartments. Due to the
time sensitive nature of this report it is difficult to fully know the extent of the properties
involved, therefore representative examples have been used (as explained in the
introduction)

0% oo I As can be seen from the map, the main thorough fare
X by vehicle is along the main high road and along
Turnpike Lane (marked in Red).

The red line areas also provide access to the shops
and to Flats/HMOs on the High Street

The areas marked in Green are locations that run to
the rear to provide access for the apartments above
_2 | the rear of shops as well, these are not well
maintained and it may not be possible to provide
individual door enhancements to all of the homes.

Public Transport - Location 2 is between Woodgreen to the North and Turnpike Lane to
the south. location 2 is both partly destination and thorough fare to turnpike lane station

2. Structure and Layout - Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause
conflict.

Alleys - There are several entrances off of the High Road (shown in the above map in green)
that lead to back alleys, these in turn lead to apartments at the rear of the shops, and in some
scenarios the rear gardens of residential properties. The alleys are poorly kept, unattractive
and are used for secondary crime such as drink related ASB and drugs. The alleys of concern
are as follows.

Between 7&9 High Road

Front entrance alley off of the high street

Front entrance alley off of the high street leads to approximately 20 rear gardens of

16



Page 25

neighbouring properties and possibly another 20-30 “loft style” apartments above the shops

Hazel Mews (just off High Road)
o = | Located at the top end

& of the area, just off the
High Street.

? = °
" * i
° .

Located in the middle,
just off the of the High
Street

HMOs/Multiple Flat conversions

There are several entrance doors on the High Street that lead to flat conversions above the
shops, organically they would alternate with the properties that are accessed from the rear.

—
—
- ]
- -

As can be seen from the images above, all of the doors lead directly into the high /street with
no defensible space. Often it is easy to gain access via slipping the night latch, as these
doors do not lead directly into the main address of each individual unit. Protecting these doors
will also give protection to mail and cycles left in the corridors behind this door.

3. Surveillance (natural, informal and formal) - Places where all publicly accessible spaces
are overlooked.

There is surveillance along the High Street, both formal (shopkeepers and residents) and
informal (LBoH CCTYV), but due to the transient nature of the High Street it is often not of

17



Page 26
practical use and its sole purpose is not to overlook the doors.

For the purpose of this report the CCTV does not cover sufficiently the locations of concern, as
they tend to focus on robbery locations within the high Street and drink/drug related ASB.

Due to the location and organic nature of the rear upper tier homes, there is very little opportunity
for surveillance amongst neighbours. At best they would only see one or two neighbours, where
by a traditional street scene (as in Location 1 and 4) would observe approximately 4-5 opposite a
street door and possibly 2 either side, giving a greater coverage.

Typical example of raised apartments
and the area of observation

Typical example of a residential street nearby that
gives better observation over neighbour’s properties

It is also important to note that the lower part of the building at the rear is for the shop usage and
these typically would only be used once, maybe twice per day for refuse (not at all if there is no
vehicle access) or as a fire exit.

4. Ownership - Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial responsibility and
community

There is only ownership of individual properties in this location and this may not be

owner/occupier. The owners maybe private landlords and who are not interested in maintenance

of a property, above and beyond what is legally required. This lack of ownership transfers to the

resident who through no fault of their own may not have the funds, ability or permission to take

ownership of the property or their surrounding area.

5. Physical Protection - Places that include necessary, well-designed security features.
Upon site inspection it was shown that the properties in the alleyways have very little to protect
their homes and ill-fitting/not fit for purpose retrofits are utilised.

Hazel Mew’s example — gated entrance to several
apartments. If the gate was set an angle following the
yellow line then the corner of ASB would have been
avoided, now the residents have to pass the location
and see this or pass the perpetrators and experience
the issues first hand.

18



Page 27

Gate to the alley way off of the high Street — Google images shows that the gate has been left
in the open position since 2008, is was installed but never been implemented, rendering it “unfit
for purpose” in providing a meaningful entrance for the residents. Even if the gate was not closed
and locked but allowed to swing into the closed position it would indicate to passers-by that this
was private space and would reduce the negative activity.

!
Turnpike Lane ©

6. Activity - Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location and creates a
reduced risk of crime and a sense of safety at all times.

Drink, drugs, ASB as well as fly-tipping are of a major concern, giving the impression that the area
is not cared for or that no one lives at the location. It sets in process a spiral of decay, whereby it
becomes difficult to repair or rebuild an area without outside intervention from local authority.
Whilst our main focus of this report is preventing burglary, the secondary crime reduction benefits
cannot be ignored. Below are examples from all of the locations specified.

7. Management and Maintenance - Places that are designed with management and
maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in the present and the future.

‘1. Local residents and shopkeepers have attempted to target harden their properties,
& often with unsightly measures

" Corner used for drinking and sexual activity (condom on the floor)

. Arson — not known whether
= accidental or deliberate, but
who has responsibility for

cleaning it.

There is little to offer for this section as it is not known who would have responsibility for the
alleyways and their maintenance. Part of the issue is the level of multi-tenancy between
commercial and private landlords that occupy the area.

19



Page 28

What Works - It is important to note that there are developments within Turnpike Lane and
the High Road that offer a similar arrangement, but they are managed by a private company
(Linton Apartments) with automated audio visual access control to Alleys or Mews and
provide a pleasant off street home experience.

High Rd, Wood Green,
London N22 68X

This shows the quality
of the apartments that
can be developed in a
small space and the
location shown in the
map, which is less than
300 metres from a tube
station. This development
was completed around
2015

el

Poundla b

Location Two — Recommendations

The following recommendations should improve the security of the homes within these areas.
Our focus isn’t on the street doors at this location due to the multi-tenancy that exists at the
locations. Alley gating brings other benefits in reducing secondary crime in the areas.

Location Two (2) — High Road, Wood Green
1. Gate pedestrian alleyway between 7&9 High Road -
a. Pedestrian gate only

i. 1.5-2.5 metres wide and 2.4 metres height

ii. Including infill to increase height or exposed tops.

iii. Self-closing with access control — Pin code with thumb/ handle on the internal side

both sides to cater for multi-tenancy

This target hardening measure will secure the rear of the properties of the High Road and the rear of
properties for Waldegrave Road as well as the properties that reside at the location

2. Gate pedestrian/ vehicle alleyway leading through Hazel Mews on Alexandra Road (just off High
Road) -
a. Pedestrian Gate - Giving limited vehicle access
b. 2.5 -3 metres wide/ 2.4 metres in height
c. No infill if vehicle access is required
d. Exposed tops

20




Page 29

e. Self-closing with access control — Pin code required due to multi-tenancy arrangement
This target hardening measure will secure the rear of properties on the High Road and the rear of
properties on Alexandra Road, as well as the properties that reside at this location.

3. Gate Alleyway leading through Walnut Mews (just off High Road in Colraine Road) -

a. Vehicle gate or wide Pedestrian access

b. 2- 3 metres across / 2.4 metres in height

c. Noinfill panel if vehicle access required, exposed tops.

d. Self-closer and access controlled
This target hardening measure will secure the rear of properties on the High Road and the rear of
properties on Waldegrave Road

4. Target harden doors of High Street side HMOs (see location one) 5 unit doors (rest is from the rear
as per recommendation 1 to 3)
a. Solid Core door

b. Locks
i. Deadlocks x2 and deadlock night latch - 100%
c. London/Birmingham bar
d. Spy hole
e. Mailbox cowling
f.  Security film to glazing
g. Video doorbell that allows multiple users - It is important to note that a video doorbell has

many benefits other than reducing burglary
i. Increase the surveillance via capable guardian at street level
1. Reducing secondary crime such as robbery, violence and antisocial
behaviour.
2. Provides evidence of criminal activity to aid in criminal proceedings
3. Rule sets behaviour at the front door (you are being watched)

All products where possible must be certified and approved to a British standard from an SBD member
company. An accredited product proven to face a certain level of attack that is manufactured by a Secure
by Design Member Company will ensure the security of the door and in turn ensure the intervention is
maintained for a considerable length of time.

Further Recommendations
It should further be recommend that the target hardening should be combined with further
recommendations for “soft” ( but no less important ) target hardening that should change residents
attitudes to the possibility of being a victim of crime and raise their awareness of ways to protect
themselves from burglary. These should include, but not be exhaustive, the following initiatives.
1. Crime prevention campaigns
i. Leaflet drops/mailshots
ii. Direct marketing via social media
2. Property marking such as bike marking or select DNA.
3. Involvement with local residents associations and ward panels

Consideration for Routine Activity Theory
All recommendations have been made with due consideration to the Routine Activity Theory (RAT) in mind with the
concept of

Motivated offenders — where possible we have reduced the opportunity for the offender to commit an offence, by
making it both difficult for them to enter a premises via their normal means and via showing them that the gain is not
worth the risk.

Suitable target - With the above measures we have reduced the feasibility of the targets suitability, thus reducing the
opportunity of crime.

Absence of a suitable guardian - With modern living there is little opportunity for a guardian to be present at a
property 24/7. With the use of the measures that we have provided, in particular with video doorbells we have
introduced the modern suitable guardian, whereby you don’t need to be home. You can still monitor your home
and engage with anyone at your door, whether lawfully of unlawfully.

21



Page 30

Location Three - EVA

Access and movement - Places with well-defined routes, spaces and entrances that
provide for convenient movement without compromising security.

v > Location three focuses on
| Turnpike lane which is
g A% situated at the bottom of the
target area. The main road
provides access to the north
into location 4. It also leads
to Mew's roads off of the
main road (marked in

' ) yellow), dead ends that lead

o (LS T et i = | only to the back of the street
properties, but gives access
Gohe— 59 T to the rear of properties on
Sidney road.

The roads marked in red provide one way and two way vehicle access through the east side
of the estate.

Public Transport - Location 3 is to the west of Turnpike lane station and would also form the
thorough fare to access the tube station. Location 3 (Turnpike Lane is both destination and
thoroughfare)

1. Structure and Layout - Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause
conflict.

Turnpike lane is a complicated street layout because it has a combination of different types
of dwellings in a short distance along the main street. Including small retail units (with
apartments), terraced houses and ground floor Mews properties with under croft alley
access from the main road. The Mews locations in particular are of concern as their design
(which probably dates back to the original buildings being created) lend themselves to
drink/drug related ASB and promotes the fear of crime when heading towards your home.

The crime that occurs in the Mews alleys often goes unreported and becomes the “norm”.
Issues such as urination, sexual activity and drugs taking can easily be hidden from

the main street. This type of activity leads to opportunistic crime such as burglary as the
perpetrator will already have been in the location when it was unoccupied and quiet, whilst
committing the minor offences.

22



Page 31

Mews
entrance

Food store
extension

Street door
to HMO or

Street door

Flats

Food store

Lack of building control on Turnpike Lane has allowed the street scene to become untidy and
poorly laid out, allowing it to suffer low level ASB such as littering, double parking etc.

The image below also shows stealth planning for Turnpike Mews when it was developed,
effectively shutting the access off to the Mews
b . 53 A Sl

e o

Sign in

2. Surveillance (natural, informal and formal) - Places where all publicly accessible spaces
are overlooked.

General
As can be seen above the street scene does not lend itself to surveillance due its organic nature
and multiple activities, it is difficult to determine who belongs in the area.

HMOs/Multiple Flat conversions

These have no surveillance as the burglaries happen behind closed doors once off the main
street and due to the transient nature associated with such properties. As reported previously
often the owners are private landlords and may not be interested in maintenance of a property,
above and beyond what is legally required. This lack of ownership transfers to the resident who
through no fault of their own may not have the funds, ability or permission to take ownership of
the property of their surrounding area.

23



Page 32

Mews

There is no CCTV inside the alleys and due to the shape and size it is difficult for residents to
see into the alley while they are in their home address. A key part of surveillance is natural and
obscured vision to the target area, this cannot be achieved with both Mews areas as one is in
the shape of a T and the other turns right into a street scene L shape. The only time a potential
offender could be seen is when they have already entered the semi-private space.

This image shows
the locations of
concern,
surveillance is
difficult behind
closed doors, in
particular for the
HMOs

3. Ownership - Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial responsibility and
community.

As reported previously often the owners are private landlords and may not be interested in

maintenance of a property, above and beyond what is legally required. This lack of ownership

transfers to the resident who through no fault of their own may not have the funds, ability or

permission to make take ownership of the property of their surrounding area.

Turnpike Mews

Appears to be little ownership by the residents. Whilst it is tidy, it is not well maintained. Some
of this may be due to the lack of sunlight (moss
on the pavement). But it does have the
appearance that nobody ventures outside, this
could be due to several doors having key safes
and which often indicates that the residents may
need carers and are unable to go outside or do
not feel safe to do so.

4. Physical Protection - Places that include necessary, well-designed security features.

HMOs — the doors used on the HMOs are of poor quality and may have been used at the
individual location for many years with no enhancements based on today’s principles. They
certainly would not be an accredited product at the time of installation. Enhancing the doors at
street level would be of greater benefit than individual doors to apartments/rooms as it would
also protect property inside the hallways, such as mail and cycles and would give a greater

24



Page 33
sense of security when entering the first threshold.

Mews - The doors in Turnpike Mews are all of the same brand and the Mews they vary in type
and quality from new (possibly accredited) to original doors. It was considered that the best
option was to gate the Mews as the best value for money and least inconvenience to the
residents that live in the location.

There are residents in the entrance road of Turnpike Mews that have concern for their property
as some of the entrances have the metal gates over the doors. The alley leading to The Mews
is in a similar condition

Shutters over the rear shop entrances, metal gates over doors all
indicators that there has been crime in the location

Terraced Houses — There are a limited number of terraced houses on the main road and their
main point of entry is through the front door, this would be our main consideration on the
terraced houses still remaining long the main street.

5. Activity - Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location and
creates a reduced risk of crime and a sense of safety at all times.

Main road — Is an active street, transient and whilst there is plenty of activity it is not
necessarily positive.

Turnpike Mews

There appears to be little activity in this courtyard. The deeper entrance to the door and the
key security box in the doorway of several units indicate that these residential homes are
meant to be mobility compliant or have evolved to be utilised in such a way due their ground
floor locality. This in turn will reduce the activity in the courtyard as the residents may be too
vulnerable or incapable of leaving their homes, especially at night time.

The Mews
Vj 20 f' " Although only a 50 metres away from Turnpike Mews (originally part of the
¢ same street) the Mews is more open and does not have the same
residential atmosphere. Doorways have no recesses, residents can park
outside their front doors and in some cases they have taken ownership of
the space in front of their homes. It appears that Turnpike Mews and the
Mews were one and the same and TM experienced an infill build which may
have been detrimental to the original design and concept of the street
scene, given current planning and designing out crime guidelines, gating
would have been requested. It is worth noting that both entrances have similar secondary
issues with ASB, sexual activity and drug taking.

6. Management and Maintenance - Places that are designed with management and
maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in the present and the future.
As can be seen in the examples above there is little can be seen of management and

25



Page 34

maintenance of in this location. Turnpike Mews in particular has seen little maintenance to the
area. The only management or maintenance is down to individual responsibility rather than a
coordinated approach to the area.

Location Three— Recommendations

Location Three (3) — Turn Pike Lane (South East of High Road)
1. Target harden doors of HMOs/ Terraced Houses — 52 units/doors

a. Locks
b. London/Birmingham bar
c. Spy hole

d. Mailbox cowling
e. Security film to glazing
2. Alley Gate Turnpike Mews, Turnpike Lane — Set between 63 & 65 Turnpike Lane
a. Pedestrian access only
b. Self closing and pin code access
c. Less than 2 metres wide/ 3 metres high.
Secondary offence mitigation - As well mitigating against burglary the use of the alley gate will
also aid in the prevention of secondary offences such as drug related ASB, sexual offences,
robbery and in some cases violence. The gate will help protect the residents and create a more
active street scene preventing likely offenders from hiding out of plain sight thus increasing natural
surveillance on the street.
3. Turnpike Pike Mews — Target harden doors and windows
i. Locks
1. Deadlock x 2 plus guards
2. Deadlocking night latch x1
ii. London/Birmingham bar
iii. Spy hole
iv. Mailbox cowling
4. Alley Gate The Mews — Set between 79 & 81 Turnpike Lane -
a. Pedestrian access only
b. Self closing and pin code access
c. Less than 2 metres wide/ 3 metres high.
Secondary offence mitigation - As well mitigating against burglary the use of the alley gate will also
aid in the prevention of secondary offences such as drug related ASB, sexual offences, robbery, motor
vehicle crime and in some cases violence. The gate will help protect the residents and create a more
active street scene preventing likely offenders from hiding out of plain sight thus increasing natural
surveillance on the street.

All products where possible must be certified and approved to a British Standard from an SBD member
company. An accredited product proven to face a certain level of attack that is manufactured by a Secured
by Design Member Company will ensure the security of the door and in turn ensure the intervention is
maintained for a considerable length of time.

Further Recommendations
It should further be recommend that the target hardening should be combined with further
recommendations for “soft” target hardening that should change residents attitudes to the possibility of
being a victim of crime and raise their awareness of ways to protect themselves from burglary.
These should include, but not be exhaustive, the following initiatives.
a. Crime prevention campaigns
i. Leaflet drops/mailshots
ii. Direct marketing via social media
b. Property marking such as bike marking or select DNA.
26



Page 35

c. Local residents associations
d. Local Ward panel meetings

Consideration for Routine Activity Theory
All recommendations have been made with due consideration to the Routine Activity Theory (RAT) in mind with the
concept of

Motivated offenders — where possible we have reduced the opportunity for the offender to commit an offence, by
making it both difficult for them to enter a premises via their normal means and via showing them that the gain is not
worth the risk.

Suitable target - With the above measures we have reduced the feasibility of the targets suitability, thus reducing the
opportunity of crime.

Absence of a suitable guardian - With modern living there is little opportunity for a guardian to be present at a
property 24/7. With the use of the measures that we have provided, in particular with video doorbells we have
introduced the modern suitable guardian, whereby you don't need to be home. You can still monitor your home
and engage with anyone at your door, whether lawfully of unlawfully.

Location Four — EVA (West of High Road)

This location focuses on terraced housing and the inherent weakness at the front of the building as per Location one.

1. Access and movement - Places with well-defined routes, spaces and entrances that
provide for convenient movement without compromising security.

wilko % "
¥ T Liol @) Whilst at first inspection the location
&S - appears to be similar to Location One, but
’ ? Pk Sire ca it can be seen by the image shown that
Nanusrs® @ there is a level of foot and road
permeability that did not exist in the other
" " location. The arrows on the far left show
@ 2 sy that the access to neighbouring roads and
¥ in particular to and from the high street
: /ITI?LG creates a multitude of opportunities for
] 00 Tol otz crime including the ability to drive past and
2o T mbeseiemg o review the vulnerabilities of the
@ i [ oo ~=“" neighbourhood.

The access from the high street feeds into the local surroundings on foot and does not
exclude the criminal on illegal substances that is stealing to feed that habit. The modus
operandi of breaking in through the front door by breaking glass or bypassing the night latch
is typical of the opportunistic nature of a criminal that has an addictive personality, compared
to a career criminal that would not want to be seen or heard. The majority of the property was
small items, phones to laptops which could have been easily concealed whilst making off.

27



Page 36

Consideration must also be given to Arnold Bennett way, in particular concern must be made
to the access that travels between Alexandra road and Burghley road as it provides easy
access and egress after an offence has been committed. This makes it difficult for capable
guardians such as the police to follow when an offence has occurred. Important to note that
vehicle egress has already been restricted on Burghley road, note the amount of the bollards,
possibly to disrupt loitering or stop parking.

Public Transport - Location 4 is to the north of Turnpike lane station and would also form
the main thorough fare to access the tube station. Access can be gained from Woodgreen
station but Turnpike Lane would be the closest for walking ( less than 1 mile)

2. Structure and Layout - Places that are structured so that different uses do not cause
conflict.

Primarily the properties are end of 20™ century terraced houses with no off-street parking
facilities which were given heritage status due to their typical design features for the period.

There are no apparent areas of bomb damage, therefore the residential area remains
unscathed with no areas of major building differences. What is important to note is the layout
of the houses, their orientation in relation to each other and the fact that gardens are locked in
(especially mid terrace houses), making it difficult to get to the rear of properties. This
explains the MO at the location of entering via the front doors and stealing small items (to
avoid attention, whilst carrying the stolen items)

Each house has a respectable sized garden at the rear, but side fencing at end of terrace can
be exposed to intruders.

28



3. Surveillance (natural, informal and formal) - Places where all publicly accessible spaces
are overlooked.

The properties appear to lend themselves well for overlooking onto the street, but typically
these windows are the main living area and would have either a sofa or TV in front of it. The
active windows would be located at the back (kitchens) towards the rear gardens with an
additional annex on the rear. The image below shows a typical Victorian terraced house and
how it would have been laid out originally.

This layout shows that the properties are more prone to burglary from the front due to the
layout of the building.

Note - Compared to Westbeech road, there are little or no video doorbells in this location,
indicating that either the residents cannot afford them or they are not aware of the positive
outcomes they would bring to the area. Video doorbells bring a level of comfort that the front is
being watched but does not encourage active surveillance only passive.

4. Ownership - Places that promote a sense of ownership, respect, territorial responsibility and
community.

It is not known at this stage how many properties are under council or local housing association
ownership. At first glance the area appears to be well maintained by local residents, but there
are homes that have been neglected at the front, this may be down to individual lack of
responsibility or as noted previously, private landlords (HMOSs) that do not give the resident the
opportunity to engage in ownership activities in the places where they live.

5. Physical Protection - Places that include necessary, well-designed security features.

29



The terraced housing in this area is indicative of both Location 1 and 4, showing the main weak
points to the front doors and windows. This is partly due to the listed status of the buildings, there
is no evidence to suggest that the doors have been replaced as per Location one, by the local
authority.

Glazed doors with single points of locking
Typical examples of various doors at the location with glazed windows, night latch (easily slipped
open) and deadlock (which often is not locked and easy to determine lock status)

Attempts have been made on some of the doors to refurbish, but with little thought to the need for
complete door enhancements. Often residents are hesitant on given up the glazing as it provides
so much light into the property or may be an attractive leaded window design.

Fences/Gates

Due to the layout and design of the area there are certain locations that have
fence treatments between the houses, creating a point of access in between
the houses. Whilst this is not the normal MO of the area, it is a vulnerability
that needs to be taken into consideration.

6. Activity - Places where the level of human activity is appropriate to the location and
creates a reduced risk of crime and a sense of safety at all times.

30



Page 39

As can be seen from the images in the report, this area is residential and pedestrian transient
(only used to get from A2B) especially being so closely linked to the High Street and doesn’t
experience the level of community focus that enclosed communities may experience. Whilst
there are capable guardians they may not be about at peak times when the offences occur.

Often it is easy to determine if occupants are in the home address, leaflet dropping, surveys
etc. are a confirmed method of discovering if someone is at home or

7. Management and Maintenance - Places that are designed with management and
maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in the present and the future.

Due to the mix tenure of the area, there is no designated management and maintenance
other than that provided by the local authority. There is evidence to suggest with the
apartment blocks that a severe lack of maintenance has led to the slow degradation of the
apartments and their surroundings.

Location Four— Recommendations

The crime MO for burglary indicates that the entry to properties is at the front building line via the street
door and that the main items that are stolen are small but of high value (phones, laptops, jewellery).
Therefore the following recommendations have been made in order of priority subject to availability of
funding.

1. Target harden doors and windows of Terraced houses/Terraced house HMOs and Apartment
blocks to include where required — Up to 204 doors
a. Locks
i. Deadlock x2 & deadlocking night latch (30% for old doors )
ii. Euro cylinder ( 70% for new doors )
London/Birmingham bar
Spy hole
Mailbox cowling
Sash window locks
Security film to glazing on old and new doors
2. Video doorbells on street level — Up to 204 homes. It is important to note that a video doorbell has
many benefits other than reducing burglary
a. Increase the surveillance via capable guardian at street level
i. Reducing secondary crime such as robbery, violence and antisocial behaviour.
ii. Provides evidence of criminal activity to aid in criminal proceedings
iii. Rule sets behaviour at the front door (you are being watched)

~®o00T

All products where possible must be certified and approved to a British standard from an SBD member
company. An accredited product proven to face a certain level of attack that is manufactured by a Secure
by Design Member Company will ensure the security of the door and in turn ensure the intervention is
maintained for a considerable length of time.

Consideration for Routine Activity Theory
All recommendations have been made with due consideration to the Routine Activity Theory (RAT) in mind with the
concept of

Motivated offenders — where possible we have reduced the opportunity for the offender to commit an offence, by
making it both difficult for them to enter a premise via their normal means and via showing them that the gain is not
worth the risk.

31



Page 40

Suitable target - With the above measures we have reduced the feasibility of the target's suitability, thus reducing the
opportunity of crime.

Absence of a suitable guardian - With modern living there is little opportunity for a guardian to be present at a
property 24/7. With the use of the measures that we have provided, in particular with video doorbells we have
introduced the modern suitable guardian, whereby you don’'t need to be home. You can still monitor your home
and engage with anyone at your door, whether lawfully of unlawfully.

Additional Recommendations

1. Property Marking — Select DNA
2. Crime prevention awareness campaign
3. Safer Tottenham BCRP to be extended to Turnpike Lane - https://www.haringey.gov.uk/news/new-
scheme-help-businesses-against-crime
4. Community Engagement via
a. Local Authority
b. Local Safer Neighbourhood Team
¢. Local Ward panel
d. Residents Associations

5. Neighbourhood Watch Scheme - Integral to the success of the target hardening recommendations
is the constant engagement and assistance from the NWS scheme and its coordinators who
provide local community champions supporting the crime prevention campaign that will promote the
legacy of physical target hardening.

Note — During the time that the interventions are being implemented, it is highly likely that the negative
activity will cease to take place take place in the target area. Combined with the raised awareness, the
pay-off for the enhancements should last for many years to come.

Video doorbells — Not only do they make people feel safe at home, they may also provide some comfort
and personal safety to the pedestrian on the street. Whilst this isn't proven at this time, with the correct
signage showing perpetrators that they are being watched, this could prove to be an effective tool in
keeping members of the public “feeling” safe to enjoy the residential high street without injury or
harassment.

32


https://www.haringey.gov.uk/news/new-scheme-help-businesses-against-crime
https://www.haringey.gov.uk/news/new-scheme-help-businesses-against-crime

Page 41

Ap pendICeS 1 — Primary & Secondary crimes per Ward in Haringey 2018

(https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/mayors-office-policing-and-crime-mopac/data-and-
statistics/london-landscape)

MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMBLY

@ Whatwedo > @ Inmyarea > () Getinvolved > () Aboutus > O Taklondon » () Mediacentre »

e 4 e

London’s Ward Landscape

Clich mare T hele navigating this dasaboar ik 1 Bee Further detsds o this varable Seloct varistie options:  DataType gy

Thesne Emigancy Sanices

Varisbe | iy Ofeeces

Bicunds Green, 1WARY

Hersmaey, HART

Msemandra, HAFY

Compare this varlable at 2 London level

[VNENEEEEN Burglary offences 2018 (8™ highest ward)

MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMBLY Search MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMBLY

................ e

London's Landscape

P Whatwedo > @ inmyarea > (D Getinvolved > @ Aboutus > () TakLondon > () Mediacenre @ Whatwedo > @ mmyasa > (D Getivoived > @ Avouus > Q) Takiondon > @ Mediacente
—~

London's Ward Landscape

Chck here for hiel navigating this dashboard Click to ace further detais on s variable Selectvariable options:  DEBTHY  [gace
Theme Ermergency Servees
Varisble [ Robbery Ofences

Year e

Top and Bottom Wards

HARY
Ry

Totteat

e e e b
GLAINTELLIGENCE UNIT MOPAC === GLAINTELLIGENCE UNIT

Robbery Offences (3™ Highest Ward) Female victims of Robbery (Highest Ward)



https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/mayors-office-policing-and-crime-mopac/data-and-statistics/london-landscape
https://www.london.gov.uk/what-we-do/mayors-office-policing-and-crime-mopac/data-and-statistics/london-landscape

MAYOR OF LONDON LONDON MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONAS!

© wWhatwede > @ myarsa > Q) OGstimvoived > @ Aboutus > O Taklonden 3 @ Meciacents > D whatwedo > @ mmyarsa > D Getivvolved > @ Aboutus > © Toikiondon > ) Mediacentrs

................ — e
London's Ward Landscape London's Ward Landscape
- p gt " ki i Setici voriabie aotions:  DemhMe  po - S ————— 1408 3 et A a0 1 o e Seiect variable sotioon. et ype g -
Thame Emmngeney Tarises - Thiinn Frergensy teranes .
by Swuss THN o Lot VeI Cfpnten

v Ofercan

Commpors this varisble st a | nndon bevel

= A
Drug Offences (2" highest Ward) Theft of Motor vehicle offences (6™ Highest Ward)

MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMELY Search < MAYOR OF LONDON LONDONASSEMBLY

D whatwede > @ inmyarea > @ Getinvelved D> @ Aboutus > Q Takiondon > (@ Mediacentrs > @) Whatwedo > @ nmyarsa > ) Getinvoived > @ Aboutus > Q) Taklondon > () Mediacentrs |

London’s Ward Landscap: London's Ward Landscape

Wk B 06 e N rGalng NS GAR LRl d Nk 10 wee further details on this varistie. Seloct variatie options:  OstnType [, C b Fonew fo bk igaliney am chambimed Clnch 3 memn s chamls o hin v sabe Seloct vanable oplions:  DHETYEE g,

Thene Emmgmncy Servoms

Compare this variable at s London level
Retum 10 Homapage

GLAINTELLIGENCE UNIT GLAINTELLIGENCE UNIT

Criminal Damage to Dwelling offences (4™ HW) Criminal Damage (3" Highest Ward)

34



Page 43

. ppendlCeS 2 = Typical Offences for Noel Park,

This is shown as a representative of the type of behaviour on the ward and in the target location

f o 4 il

Overview Crime map Stop and search Statistics

Explore crimes

Click on a hotspot to see more details. Alternatively, view as A-Z list. Edit crime type and time period

4, Search anotharares 17 | All Crimes [280) ~ |

Vi

l August 201%
# o 4 ih

Overview $too and search Statistics.

43 crimes were reported here in
August 2019

Top reported crimes Crime levels overview

m+  Anti-social behaviour Fal
Most commonly reparted crimes during Jan 2021 Crime for Lt year

Vikence and sexual offences 5
Anti-social behaviour 103 Crime per Manth

Other theft 4
Viclence and sexual offences 35
Vehicle crime 20
Other theft 19

View crime definitions

Wiew as allst v

Dowmniload area crime data

A p pend | CES 3 ~ LSOA data indicating the scope of the crime and the required benchmark

Adjusted Average (5% tolerance)

Bench - Vehicle | Bench - Neighbourhood ;
LSOA Code Borough Burglary [Bench-7.91 Robbery | 1.16 Theft Offences || 8.74 rime Bench-18.3 |r
E01002010 Haringey 20.74238In Scope 2.398591n Scope 2.747513516 16.98818In Scope 4287665965 In Scope
E01001996 Haringey 13.7013In Scope 23.337781In Scope 45.35588132 18.29374In Scope 100.6886919 In Scope
E01002002 Haringey 20.87929In Scope 35.673691In Scope 42.08954016 15.18778In Scope 113.8302996 In Scope
t01002031 Haringey 12.1274In Scope 13.87276In Scope 31.46704168 16.30756In Scope 73.77476489 In Scope I
E01002069 Haringey 16.78804 In Scope 31.133291n Scope 20.41878135 21.31131In Scope 89.651422In Scope
E01001994 Haringey 21.79852In Scope 2.282196In Scope 0.905080627 11.69486In Scope 36.68066065 In Scope

3 year average

Vehicle  Neighborhood
LSOA Code Borough Burglary Robbery Theft Offences Crime
E01002010 Haringey 34.7 4.0 4.7 28.3 7.7
E01001996 Haringey 13.3 58 3.0 19.3 39.0
E01002002 Haringey 40.3 69.0 81.3 293 220.0
E01002031 Haringey 28.0 32.0 723 357 170.3
E01002069 Haringey 39.0 TEET) 48.3 49.7 209.7
E01001994 Haringey 39.0 4.0 1.7 20.7 65.3

35



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Alley Gate Public Space Protection Order - Noel Park Ward
	Appendix 1 - Proposals for Consultation on a Public Spaces Protection Order in Noel Park Ward


